Meeting papers

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee
Tuesday 20 February 2018 at 2.00 pm
Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee

Tuesday 20 February 2018 at 2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Andrea Clarke

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Andrea Clarke

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.
3

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
To answer any written or oral questions about matters which are within the
powers and duties of the committee.

Chair

The closing date/time for receipt of written questions is 6.00pm on 14
February 2018 (three clear working days before date of the meeting).
Please send questions to the Democratic Services Unit, marked for the
attention of Andrea Clarke (email: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk).
An oral question may be asked by a member of the public if notice of the
question is given by the questioner to Democratic Services at least 30
minutes prior to the start of the meeting.
Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be possible to
provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which case a written
answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably possible after the meeting.
4

MEMBER QUESTIONS
To answer any written members’ questions about matters which are within
the powers and duties of the committee. The closing date/time for the
receipt of questions is 6.00pm on 14 February 2018 (three clear working
days before the date of the meeting). Please send questions to the
Democratic Services Unit marked for the attention of Andrea Clarke
(email: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk).

Date Published:9 February 2018

Chair

5

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 2)

Andrea Clarke

6

BUSINESS PLAN 2018/21 (Pages 3 - 30)

Wayne Lewis

The committee to adopt the Business Plan 2018/21
7

RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT UPDATE (Pages 31 - 34)

Wayne Lewis

8

DEFRA 25 YEAR ENVIRONMENT PLAN (Pages 35 - 38)

Wayne Lewis

The committee to receive a briefing.
The full report is available at this link

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment
_data/file/673203/25-year-environment-plan.pdf
9

MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS MONITORING REPORT (Pages 39 - 52)

Rachel Capon

10

SERVICE/ACTION PLAN UPDATE (Pages 53 - 62)

Scott Williams

FOR INFORMATION
Committee meetings in 2018: 19 June 2018
9 October 2018
4 December 2018
All meetings start at 10am, and are held in the Cabinet Suite, Shire Hall, Gloucester, GL1 2TG.
Membership – Cllr Nigel Moor and Cllr Ray Theodoulou(Gloucestershire County Council),
Cllr Sue Coakley (Cotswold District Council), Cllr Chris Coleman (Cheltenham Borough Council),
Cllr Bruce Hogan (Forest of Dean District Council), Cllr Jim Mason (Tewkesbury Borough Council),
Cllr Helena McCloskey (Cheltenham Borough Council), Cllr Chris McFarling (Forest of Dean District
Council), Cllr Tina Stevenson (Cotswold District Council) and Cllr Mark Williams (Tewkesbury
Borough Council)
Co-Opted Members - Cllr Richard Cook (Gloucester City Council), Cllr Paul Denney (Stroud
District Council) and Cllr Simon Pickering (Stroud District Council)
(a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Please declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or
personal interests that you may have relating to specific matters which may be discussed
at this meeting, by signing the form that will be available in the Cabinet Suite. Completing
this list is acceptable as a declaration, but does not, of course, prevent members from
declaring an interest orally in relation to individual agenda items. The list will be available
for public inspection.
Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to make a declaration of interest
are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Jane Burns  01452 328472, email
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the

meeting, please contact: Andrea Clarke, Senior Democratic Services Adviser
:01452 324203/fax: 425850/e-mail: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk
(c)

Co-opted Members
Gloucester City and Stroud District Councils may each nominate up to two Co-opted
Members to attend and participate in the Committee’s meetings. Co-opted Members may
take a full part in public debate where they are present, but may not vote. In the event of
the Committee discussing confidential “exempt” non–public items the general presumption
is that co-opted members shall leave the meeting, although should a co-opted member
make a case to stay, this may be waived at the Chairman’s discretion provided no voting
member raises an objection. Co-opted Members may, in such circumstances, be asked to
leave the meeting while the Chairman seeks views from Voting Members.

(d)

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1
Members are asked to sign the attendance list.
2.
Substitution of members – Where a substitute member takes the place of a
committee member who is an executive member of the appointing partner authority
the substitute member must also be a member of the executive.
3.
Quorum - The quorum for a meeting shall be five committee members, which shall
include at least one member appointed by each of the five different partner
authorities. No business shall be transacted unless quorum is reached. If quorum is
not reached within 30 minutes of the start of the meeting, (or if quorum ceases to be
present during a meeting), the meeting shall be adjourned to the same time and
venue within five working days of the meeting or to a date determined by the
Chairman.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
GLOUCESTERSHIRE JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee held on Tuesday 5
December 2017 at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.
PRESENT:
Cllr Sue Coakley
Cllr Chris Coleman
Cllr Richard Cook
Cllr Bruce Hogan

Cllr Jim Mason
Cllr Chris McFarling
Cllr Ray Theodoulou
Cllr Mark Williams

Substitutes:
Officers in attendance:

Apologies:

20.

Andy Barge, Rachel Capon, Julie Davies, Wayne Lewis, Claire
Locke, Andy Pritchard, Nigel Riglar, Martin Stacy, Peter Tonge and
Scott Williams

Cllr Paul Denney, Cllr Helena McCloskey, Cllr Nigel Moor FRTPI FRSA and Cllr
Simon Pickering

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were received.

21.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
No public questions were received.

22.

MEMBER QUESTIONS
No members’ questions were received.

23.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 3 OCTOBER 2017
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 5 December 2017 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

24.

MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS MONITORING REPORT

24.1

Wayne Lewis, Head of Joint Waste Management, gave a full presentation of the report.

24.2

The committee noted that the county council had picked up the costs of funding the Head
of Joint Waste Management this year. It was also noted that member contributions would
be needed in the next financial year (2018-19).

24.3

The costs associated with the use of agency staff by Ubico, and potential mitigations, were
discussed. It was also clarified that agency staff were required to undertake the same
training for health and safety matters as permanent members of staff.

24.4

The committee noted the financial performance as contained in the report.

25.

PERFORMANCE REPORT
The committee was pleased to note that the kg/hh of residual waste had reduced
significantly falling to 490kg/hh in 2016/17, an improvement on the previous low point in
2012/13, and that this was forecast to reduce further in 2017/18 to 456kg/hh.

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

26.

SERVICE/ACTION PLAN UPDATE

26.1

Following the formal committee meeting the committee was holding a workshop to discuss
future needs and ways of working. Mr Lewis informed the committee that the draft Action
Plan for 2018/21 would be revised following on from those discussions.

26.2

In response to a question it was explained that the handover of the Gloucestershire Energy
from Waste plant would be an internal process.

CHAIRMAN
Meeting concluded at 10.15 am

-2-

Page 2

Agenda Item 6

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee
Business Plan
Covering the period
2018-21

1

Page 3

1. Introduction
This is the sixth business plan of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee (GJWC)
constituted between: Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, Forest of
Dean District Council, Gloucestershire County Council and Tewkesbury Borough
Council.
The GJWC is a body with delegated powers to oversee and make decisions concerning
the recycling, waste collection and street cleansing services for four district and
borough councils and to deliver waste treatment and disposal for the county council.
The agreed framework for the GJWC is an Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) signed in
December 2014. Further information on the GJWC is provided in appendix 1.
2. Purpose
The business plan is a requirement under the IAA. It outlines the key priorities and actions for
the next three years.
The purpose of this plan is to:
 set out a clear action plan for the 2018/21 period;
 provide a draft budget to support the work of the GJWC; and,
 support decision making by the GJWC, in accordance with the governance and
budgetary principles within the IAA.
3. Rationale for Joint Working
Over the last two decades, the roles of district councils as Waste Collection Authorities
and the county council as Waste Disposal Authority have become more complex and
interdependent. The traditional linear economy of “take, make and dispose” is
progressively being replaced by a more circular model, where resources are conserved
and waste is prevented. Local authorities can no longer simply collect and dispose of
waste, but have a broader role that encompasses each level of the waste management
hierarchy.
Figure 1: Waste Management Hierarchy

Local authorities are experiencing a period of unprecedented budgetary pressure.
Councils have smaller budgets and fewer staff resources. Partnerships and shared
service arrangements have been developed to continue delivery of vital public services.
The GJWC has been established to make best use of available resources in a
coordinated and collaborative way.
2

Page 4

Further information on the operating environment in which the GJWC functions is given
in appendix 2. This sets out some of the key policy and economic drivers affecting the
work of the GJWC.
4. Goal
In approving this business plan, the partners agree that the GJWC’s principal goal is:
To align and integrate waste and recycling services across the whole county, incrementally
as fast as possible, reaching the goal before the end of 2024.
In pursuit of this goal, the partners commit to:
 approaching service design with an open mind;
 contributing constructively to the debate;
 striving to reach consensus in the interest of the driving principles; and
 fairly sharing the reasonable costs of the journey.
5. Principles
In determining the methodology and route to service integration, the driving principles will be:
 minimising the amount of waste for disposal through prevention, reuse and recycling;
 optimising the whole cost of services to residents; and
 apportionment of service costs and incentives in a fair and equitable manner.
6. Success Criteria
The partnership shall be deemed successful when:
 a greater proportion of household waste is diverted from landfill through waste
prevention, reuse, recycling, anaerobic digestion, composting and energy recovery;
 residents can easily recycle a broad range of materials;
 residents have a positive view of recycling and the services provided;
 the unit costs of providing waste services represent good value for money and are
further reduced where opportunities arise;
 the recycled materials collected are of high quality and meet the specification of end
users;
 costs and savings through joint working are fairly distributed between partners and
their residents;
 staff, assets and other resources are shared between partners, especially at times of
change;
 changes in policy, legislation, technology and social trends are reflected in the work
of the partnership so that our waste services remain relevant, compliant and effective.
7. Relationship with the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS)
and other Gloucestershire collection authorities.
The formation of the GJWC is in line with the JMWMS (albeit that Gloucester City
Council and Stroud District Council are not voting members of the GJWC at this time).
This business plan will, however, contribute to the delivery of JMWMS objectives by the
five GJWC authorities. Under the JMWMS, each Gloucestershire local authority is
required to produce an annual action plan that sets out the key waste management
actions the authority will undertake to implement this strategy. The action plan included
within this business plan at Appendix 3 will replace the individual action plans for the
GJWC Partner Authorities and will sit under the JMWMS alongside the action plans for
Gloucester City Council and Stroud District Council.
3

Page 5

The JMWMS runs to March 2020. Whilst a JMWMS is no longer a legal requirement,
the future ambitions and plans for waste management beyond 2020 in Gloucestershire
should be reviewed, agreed and clearly stated by the GJWC. A project to complete this
work has been included within the action plan for 2018-21.
8. Joint Waste Team
The GJWC is served by a Joint Waste Team (JWT) whose principal role is to specify,
plan, procure (where authorised by the GJWC and budget holding authority(s)),
monitor, co-ordinate and improve the delivery of services to householders, delivered by
a number of service providers. The JWT is responsible for marketing the recyclable
materials collected by partner councils, and conducts communications and community
engagement work on behalf of the GJWC.
9. Achievements in 2017/18 (to date)
The performance improvements reported in 2016/17 continued in 2017/18 with the
amount of waste sent to landfill reducing by a forecast 6.9% and the proportion of waste
reused and recycled increasing by a forecast 3.5%. Gloucestershire’s estimated
recycling rate for 2017/18 is 54.7%
Despite a challenging year for the JWT, which has carried a number of vacancies
(including the Head of Service position between April and October), good progress has
been made. Notable achievements include:
 The award of new contracts for the sale of recyclable materials by Cheltenham
B.C and by Gloucestershire C.C achieving improved value for money;
 Improved recycling performance resulting from the introduction of a new
kerbside recycling collection service in Cheltenham B.C;
 The development of comprehensive waste and recycling collection service
policies and procedures for Tewkesbury B.C;
 The on-going construction of the new Javelin Park Energy from Waste facility;
and,
 The delivery of a successful, multi-agency anti-litter campaign within the Forest
of Dean.
10. Actions
An action plan setting out key projects and work streams for the 2018/21 period is set
out in appendix 3. The actions reflect priorities identified by members of the GJWC at a
workshop in December 2017. Here the GJWC reaffirmed its priorities as:
 reducing waste and environmental harm;
 developing a business case for the alignment of services;
 working in partnership to deliver a wide range of recycling opportunities for
residents whenever affordable; and
 communicating waste reduction and recycling messages as widely as possible.
A number of projects within the action plan will inform the strategic direction of the
GJWC and help it meet its principal goal of seeking to align and integrate waste and
recycling services across the county by the end of 2024 (where a business case exists).
These projects include work to benchmark and understand the baseline costs of waste
and recycling collection services across Gloucestershire. To develop options that would
better align our services in future, whilst seeking to optimise cost and environmental
4

Page 6

performance. This work will commence with a review of Cotswold D.C’s waste and
recycling collection services next year, ahead of a fleet renewal in 2019.
Other projects are designed to review the organisational and financial structure of the
partnership, so that it is able to meet its objectives. The way that the GJWC is funded
and structured at present is largely historic and might not always facilitate the seamless
working arrangements to which the partnership aspires.
There are a number of procurements and contract mobilisation projects to be delivered
that are needed to ensure continued, high quality service delivery. The single biggest
contract to be mobilised within the period of this business plan is the new energy from
waste facility at Javelin Park. This is due to open in July 2019. It will bring to an end the
local reliance on landfill for the disposal of residual household waste and has the
potential to generate enough electricity to power 25,000 households.
Many projects focus on improved efficiency and performance by reviewing current
service provision. There is also a strong communications and aware raising section to
the plan, which is supported by a communications plan. Key themes for 2018/19 will be:
 encouraging people to reduce and recycle plastics;
 encouraging people to reduce and recycle food waste; and
 a focus on generating high quality, clean recyclable materials in light of
tightening restrictions on the export of these materials.
A summary of all planned communications activity is given in Appendix 4.
11. Draft Budget 2018/19
The draft 2018/19 revenue budgets are set out Appendix 5. These are provisional
figures that are subject to approval by each authority as part of their budget setting
process.
The GWJC Constitution requires that any matter that has an impact on any partner’s
financial standing or service provision may only proceed with the express agreement of
the partner(s) concerned.
The contractual element of budgets (which is the large majority) are retained by
individual partners but are managed with the support of the JWT.
12. Risk Register
A risk register is included at Appendix 6. The risk register will be reviewed regularly by
the SMG and any high level risks brought to the attention of the GJWC.
A high level risk identified at present relate to the need to ensure good cost control and
budget monitoring with Ubico, which provides a wide range of waste and cleansing
services to the partner councils.
13. List of Appendices
Appendix 1 – GJWC Background Information
Appendix 2 – Operating Environment
Appendix 3 – Action Plan
Appendix 4 – Waste Marketing and Behaviour Change Programme
Appendix 5 – Draft Budget 2018/19
Appendix 6– Risk Register
5

Page 7

6

Page 8

Appendix 1 – GJWC Background Information
A.1.1 Formation of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee (GJWC)
The GJWC has been formed under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 to
oversee recycling, waste collection and street cleansing services for four district and
borough councils and to deliver waste treatment and disposal for the County.
The partnership comprises the following authorities:


Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC);



Cotswold District Council (CDC);



Forest of Dean District Council (FoDDC);



Gloucestershire County Council (GCC);



Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC).

The agreed framework for the GJWC is an Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) signed in
December 2014 whereby the five authorities named above have delegated their powers
in relation to the delivery of waste collection and disposal and street cleansing services
to the GJWC. The IAA contains a Constitution that specifies how the partnership is
governed.
The GJWC comprises of two Members from each authority on a ‘one Member, one
vote’ basis. The GJWC meets formally in public session on a quarterly basis with
informal meetings, workshops and visits taking place as required between formal
meetings. Election of the Chairman and Vice Chairman will be held annually at an
AGM.
The GJWC directs a Joint Waste Team (JWT) led by a Head of Service who reports
directly to the Joint Waste Committee and has, in turn, functions and powers delegated
to it by the GJWC. The Head of Service maintains close strategic and operational links
with the Partner Authorities through a director-level Strategic Management Group
(SMG). The GJWC is ‘hosted’ by Gloucestershire County Council acting as
Administering Authority. The roles of the Administering Authority and SMG are set out
in the IAA.
A.1.2 Purpose of the GJWC
The GJWC provides a shared decision making body to improve services and deliver
savings. It aims to facilitate whole system thinking to reinforce quality of decision
making from customer, financial and resource efficiency points of view.
A.1.3 Vision of the GJWC
In June 2011 the emerging partners agreed a joint vision which aspired to the formation
of a partnership. The aims identified include:


Reducing landfill and encouraging high participation in waste avoidance, reuse,
recycling and food waste collection schemes.

7

Page 9













Engaging with local people to encourage participation in recycling, support
economic wellbeing and use efficient, sustainable and affordable solutions at
every stage of the process.
Encouragement and facilitation of innovation, joined up strategy, policy and
operations across the county, continuing to encourage all Gloucestershire
councils to join the partnership.
Developing a holistic approach to service review so that the financial proposition
is the most sustainable for the local taxpayer.
Working together in partnership to deliver more efficient waste services.
Considering potential for waste collection and disposal as a single system
provided for the council tax payers of Gloucestershire.
Governance by a Joint Waste Committee with delegated powers to act in the
area of waste disposal and collection with representatives from each of the
participating District and the County Councils.
Formation of a Joint Waste Team responsible for:
o Delivering on Business Plan actions and any further resolutions
o Managing existing external waste contracts.
Having safeguards in place to ensure that the Districts and the County retain
decision-making on significant budgetary and service change matters.
Maintaining existing customer contact arrangements.
Managing within a common strategy with the goal of achieving the most efficient
waste service.
Planning across district and borough boundaries, optimising depot and transfer
stations infrastructure and the use and purchase of resources such as vehicles.

A.1.4 Key Principles Regarding Financial Control and Service Provision
The Constitution facilitates joint working while reserving that any matter that has an
impact on any partner’s financial standing or service provision (for example: frequency
of collections or Recycling Centre opening hours) may only proceed with the express
agreement of the partner(s) concerned.
A.1.5 Services Provided
The Partner Authorities have delegated responsibility for the following service areas to
the GJWC:










Household residual waste, dry recycling and organics collection;
Local Authority Collected Waste transfer, treatment and disposal;
Bring sites;
Household Recycling Centres (HRCs);
Bulky household waste collection;
Commercial waste collection (where offered);
Street cleansing;
Waste and street cleansing PR, marketing and community engagement
(including with schools);
Medical sharps and clinical waste collection and disposal.

A.1.6 The Budgetary Framework
The Budgetary Framework is set out within the IAA, specifically Schedules 4 and 5.
The main principles are as follows:
8

Page 10








The Constitution requires that any matter that has an impact on any partner’s
financial standing or service provision may only proceed with the express
agreement of the partner(s) concerned.
The partnership accumulated funding remaining to cover Head of Service and
support costs. The reserve was envisaged to be sufficient to last for the first
three years and thereafter these costs are to be funded by the partners through
savings.
The salary, expenses and local service and supply costs of transferred
employees are covered by the transferring authority who reimburse the
Administering Authority accordingly.
Contract payments and other ongoing liabilities in connection with the service
are made by the contract holding authority upon instruction of the JWT.
Income received by the partner authorities for garden waste etc. will be retained
by each local authority to offset contractual costs.

9

Page 11

Appendix 2 - The Operating Environment
A.2.1 Overview
There are many things that have an impact on services that are not under the control of
the GJWC, JWT or the partners. Recycling and waste management is a statutory,
demand-led service with a high proportion of fixed costs due to contractual and/or tax
requirements. There is however some variability particularly around waste tonnages
and the mix of materials recovered. These variable costs can be influenced by
macroeconomic effects such as changes in the economy, the markets for recyclable
materials, government policy and measures such as the landfill tax escalator, and
social behaviour such as the degree of participation in recycling schemes.
There is always a degree of uncertainty about how such external factors will impact and
interplay. We can however identify those issues that might have an impact on the
business in the future. The business environment in this period is expected to be
characterised to a greater or lesser extent by the following:







Political and economic uncertainty as the UK prepares to leave the EU by March
2019;
Uncertainty in the recovered materials markets as a result of Chinese restrictions
on the import of plastics and mixed paper & card;
Growing government and public concern over plastic waste and its
environmental impact;
Increased global action to reduce food waste;
Difficulty in recruiting and retaining sufficient staff locally for waste operational
roles, particularly drivers;
Ongoing challenges to public bodies to meet the budget deficit; and,
Increased demand from a growing and ageing population.

A.2.2 External Drivers
A.2.2.1 Circular Economy Package
On 2 December 2015, the European Commission adopted a new Circular Economy
Package to stimulate Europe’s transition towards a circular economy. The Package
consists of:
 an EU Action Plan for the Circular Economy;
 a timetable setting out when the actions will be completed; and,
 adoption of a number of legislative proposals, including a number focussing on
waste.
Waste proposals include:
 increasing the preparing for re-use and recycling target for municipal waste to
60% by weight by 2025 and 65% by weight by 2030;
 a gradual limitation of the landfilling of municipal waste to 10% by 2030 and a
ban on landfilling separately collected waste;
 increasing the preparing for reuse and recycling targets for all packaging waste
to 65% by 2025 and 75% by 2030 (with specific targets for specific
packaging materials such as plastic, wood, glass, paper and cardboard);
 ensuring the separate collection of bio-waste (including biodegradable garden
and park waste, food and kitchen waste from households, restaurants, caterers
and retail premises) where it is technically, environmentally and economically
practicable and appropriate;
10

Page 12




simplified definitions and harmonised calculation methods for recycling rates
throughout the EU; and
increasing economic incentives for better product design through provisions on
extended producer responsibility schemes.

Whilst there is some uncertainty as to whether the UK will implement these measures
post-Brexit, it is understood that government departments continue to work towards
their adoption at the current time.
In September 2015, as part of the 2030 Sustainable Development Goals, the UN
adopted a target of halving per capita food waste at the retail and consumer level and
reducing food losses along the production and supply chains. In order to support
actions to meet this target, the European Commission has implemented the following
actions on food waste:
 establishing a common methodology of measuring food waste;
 clarifying relevant EU legislation in order to facilitate food donation and utilisation
of foodstuffs for animal feed;
 examining ways to improve the use of date marking and its understanding by
consumers, in particular the "best before" labels.
The circular economy legislative proposals also include a requirement for member
states to ensure separate collections of bio-waste (including food waste) where
technically, environmentally and economically practicable and appropriate.
A.2.2.2 DEFRA 25 year plan to improve the environment
DEFRA published its long-awaited 25 year plan in January 2018. The foreword by the
Prime Minster states that:
“We hold our natural environment in trust for the next generation. By implementing the
measures in this ambitious plan, ours can become the first generation to leave that
environment in a better state than we found it and pass on to the next generation a
natural environment protected and enhanced for the future”
The resource management policies within the plan are to:
i. Achieve zero avoidable plastic waste by the end of 2042;
ii. Reduce food supply chain emissions and waste;
iii. Reduce litter and littering;
iv. Improve management of residual waste;
v. Crack down on fly-tippers and waste criminals; and
vi. Reduce the impact of wastewater.
Government has committed to developing a national Resources and Waste Strategy in
2018. It will set out an approach to reducing waste, promoting markets for secondary
materials, incentivising producers to design better products and how we can better
manage materials at the end of their life.
A.2.2.3 Secondary Material Markets
The materials collected by councils for recycling are often globally traded commodities.
The markets secondary material can be volatile, with prices moving up and down as a
result of global demand.

11

Page 13

A recent challenge has resulted from the introduction of restrictions by the Chinese
Government on the level of contamination that will be accepted within imported
recyclable materials. It has banned the import of mixed, unsorted paper and placed a
0.5% contamination level on recovered plastics. The new ruling came in to effect on 31
December 2017.
The tighter quality requirements introduced by the Chinese means that most of the
material collected by councils for recycling will not be of sufficient quality for the
Chinese market. This is likely to result in increased processing costs, restricted markets
and lower prices paid for collected materials. Whilst alternative markets are being
sought by reprocessors there is a relatively high dependence within the UK on export to
China.
For the partners within the GJWC, a close eye will need to be kept on market prices, so
that budgets can be managed responsively. Efforts need to be made to ensure that the
materials placed on to the market are clean and of good quality, so that the best
available prices can be sought.
A.2.3 Challenges
Gloucestershire has achieved a high level of waste recycling; recycling more than 50%
for the first time in 2017/18. Levels of residual waste have also reduced to their lowest
level at 490kg/hh/yr in 2016/17. A key challenge will be to make further improvements
to these figures. This will require ongoing communications and public engagement
work, consistent, high quality collection systems and continued efforts to find outlets for
collected materials within a challenging market place.
Achieving the GJWC aspiration of achieving service integration by 2024 will require a
detailed review of current service arrangements, a review of available options and the
development of proposals that are acceptable and workable for all partners. This will be
a key work area over the period of this plan. Council budgets continue to be
constrained as the revenue support grant continues to reduce in real terms year on
year. For example, Gloucestershire County Council’s proposed revenue budget for
2018/19 totals £407.16 million, a net reduction of £0.54 million from 2017/18 – this is
made up of £28.72 million of investment in services offset by £29.26 million of savings
and efficiencies.
Gloucestershire continues to grow, which places pressure on services year on year.
Over next 25 years (2014-2039), the county’s population growth is an estimated 16.8%.
Tewkesbury and Gloucester will have largest increases over 25 years (24.5% and
19.9%) and Forest of Dean the lowest (10.9%).
The age structure of Gloucestershire’s population is also changing. Over next 25 years
(2014-2039) the number of residents aged 65 or over will rise by 66.6% (from 123,800
to 206,300). Those aged over 85 will increase by 40% (from 17,100 to 42,300). By
contrast, the working age population (those aged 20 – 64) will increase by only 1.4%.
Waste and recycling collection remains a fairly labour intensive operation and local
providers have reported difficulties in recruiting and retaining staff, particularly drivers.
The JWT will continue to work with our service providers to seek efficiencies in the way
that waste management services are delivered and deliver high quality services to
Gloucestershire residents.
12

Page 14

Appendix 3 – Action Plan

Project
1

Affecting

Page 15

Benchmarking review of current collection
services.

All

1.2

Development of future aligned collection
options.

All

1.3

Service Integration Routemap.

All

1.4

Continue to encourage Gloucester City and
Stroud DC to join the JWC.

All

1.5

Review and renew the Gloucestershire Joint
Municipal Waste Management Strategy.

All

2.1
3
3.1
3.2
3.3

Target completion
date

Strategic Direction

1.1

2

Objective and /or Outcomes
To understand the relative cost and performance of
current waste and recycling services across
Gloucestershire.
To understand the indicative cost and performance of a
shortlist of future aligned collection service options.
To develop a preferred option and pathway to service
integration.
To develop an overall strategy and optimised delivery
framework for efficient, effective and inclusive resource
management in Gloucestershire.
To agree a vision, priorities and targets for municipal
waste management in Gloucestershire beyond Mar
2020.

Oct-18
Mar-19
Oct-19
Ongoing

Feb-20

Infrastructure
FODDC Depot Project
Procurement
Procurement of a replacement composting
contract for garden waste collected in
Gloucestershire.
Mobilisation of FoDDC street cleaning contract.
Refuse and garden waste vehicle
procurement.

To produce a site assessment report and prepare a
business case for a council owned Depot and Bulking
Facility to be in place in readiness for 2024.

Mar-19

New contract to compost garden waste.

Jan-20

FoDDC

New contract for street cleaning within FoDDC.

Aug-18

FODDC

New vehicles in line with contract for 2018-2024.

Jul-18

FODDC

All

13

Procurement of waste transfer from the north,
east and west of county.

GCC

3.5.1

Purchase HRC mobile compactors.

GCC

3.5.2

Purchase HRC mobile compactors.

GCC

3.6

Food waste contract extension/procurement.

GCC

3.7

Reach decision on contract extensions for sale
of recyclable materials from HRC sites.

GCC

To ensure continued arrangements for HRC recyclate
sales.

Aug-20

3.8

Dry recycling material transfer
extension/procurement.

TBC

To ensure that there are adequate arrangements in
place for the transfer of mixed dry recycling to the MRF
beyond the end of the current contract term.

Apr-19

3.4

4

To ensure adequate long term waste transfer is in place
to support FoD, TBC, CBC & CDC.
To replace compactors at Hempsted and Pyke HRCs.
To replace compactors at Oak Quarry and Wingmoor
HRCs.
To ensure that a food waste recycling contract remains
in place beyond the end of current contract term.

Mar-19
Sep-18
Jun-19
Sep-19

Service Development, Efficiency and Improvement

Page 16

4.1

Review options for dewatering and recycling
street sweepings and gulley waste.

All

To assess and, if economically viable, arrange recycling
of street sweepings and gulley waste.
To undertake a business case for a consistent service in
the JCS area around Cheltenham, which crosses district
boundaries. To ensure that the preferred collection
service is aligned with wider GJWC work on service
integration.
To assess the impact of the improved kerbside recycling
service on bring site usage and identify any areas of
improvement/efficiency.

4.2

To review and establish how new
developments that cross boundaries will be
serviced.

CBC/TBC

4.3

CBC Bring Site Review

CBC

4.4

Alignment of street cleaning functions with
waste and recycling collections.

CBC

To improve the efficiency of street cleansing in the
borough.

Oct-18

4.5

Support CDC in appraising the options
available for waste and recycling service
improvement in 2019 when the current
vehicles reach their end of life.

CDC

To assess the collection options available to CDC, so
that the service remains affordable, meets customer
expectations and achieves high levels of recycling. To
ensure that the preferred collection service is aligned
with wider GJWC work on service integration.

Mar-19

14

Mar-20

Oct-19

Jul-18

To review opening hours and charging policies at HRCs
in order to identify efficiency savings contributing to
GCC's wider savings programme.

Oct-18

Review of HRC Contract performance.

GCC

To review the performance of the HRC Service Contract
following its first full year of operation and assess
whether it remains value for money.

Jun-18

Residual waste composition analysis.

GCC

Four-season analysis of kerbside and HRC residual
waste commencing summer 2018.

Apr-19

GCC

To minimise the amount of waste disposal at Hempsted.

GCC

To ensure that the contract is mobilised on time and in
line with the contract requirements.

Jul-19

GCC

To have contracts in place for the recycling of materials
collected at HRCs.

Apr-18

TBC & CBC

Present review findings to authorities and gain support
for service improvements.

Oct-18

Investigate the options for kerbside collection with a view
to increasing the capture rate of WEEE.

Mar-19

Review HRCs to explore service efficiency
opportunities.

4.7
4.8
4.9
4.10

Page 17

GCC & CBC

4.6

Redirect a proportion of waste to Wingmoor
Farm landfill in order to prolong life of
Hempsted landfill.
Mobilisation of Javelin Park Energy from
Waste contract.

4.11

Mobilisation of HRC recyclable material sales
contracts.

4.12

Work with Ubico to undertake a review of the
discretionary trade waste service to ensure it is
operating on a viable commercial level.

4.13

Investigate the collection of WEEE (and other
possible recyclables) at the kerbside.

TBC

4.14

Street cleaning operational review.

TBC

4.15

Bulky waste collection service review.

TBC

5
5.1

To improve the effectiveness of street cleansing in the
borough.
To consider service options with the aim of improving
service levels and reducing waste to landfill following an
audit of the service and assist in implementing the
recommendations.

Ongoing

Mar-19

Mar-19

Organisational / Systems
Review JWC funding arrangements.

All

To ensure that funding arrangements remain sufficient to
deliver JWC objectives and are shared equitably by the
partner councils.

15

Oct-18

5.2

Review JWT staffing structure.

All

To ensure sufficient resources are in place to support
partner councils and deliver JWC objectives.

Oct-18

5.3

Javelin Park project handover

GCC

To ensure an efficient transfer of responsibility for the
contract from the commercial/procurement team to the
JWT.

Mar-19

2020
partners

To ensure continuity of service, and quality of service
delivery and customer satisfaction.

Ongoing

5.4
6

Support 2020 project changes - e.g. changes
to CRM systems that impact on service
delivery
Communications and Behavioural Change

Page 18

6.1

Communications campaign highlighting the
importance of separating the right materials for
recycling.

6.2

Communications campaign to promote food
waste prevention and recycling.

All

Maintaining high quality recyclable materials and
minimising contamination.

Mar-19

All

Encourage residents to reduce food waste, maintain high
capture rates of food waste for recycling and minimise
the amount of food waste within the residual waste
stream.

Mar-19

All

Encourage residents to reduce consumption of singleuse plastics, maintain high capture rates of plastic for
recycling and minimise the amount of plastic materials
within the residual waste stream.

Mar-19

6.3

Communications campaign to promote the
reduction and recycling of plastic waste.

6.4

Javelin Park communications.

GCC

6.5

Continued promotion of real nappies.

GCC

6.6

Continued support for home and community
composting.

GCC

To ensure consistent and clear communications relating
to the construction and operation of the facility.
To provide information and support on the use of
reusable nappies and to promote the uptake of the
Gloucestershire Real Nappy voucher scheme.
To provide information and support on home and
community composting and continue to make home
composting bins available for purchase by
Gloucestershire residents.

16

Ongoing
Ongoing

Ongoing

6.7

Commission and complete a residual waste
composition analysis

GCC

6.8

Promote garden waste collection schemes in
all districts.

CDC, CBC,
FoDDC &
TBC

6.9

To build on the Love Your Forest anti-litter
campaign.

7

Page 19

7.1

FoDDC

To conduct a four-season composition analysis of
household residual waste to both determine the baseline
calorific value of waste to be treated at the Javelin Park
facility and also to inform our waste prevention, reuse
and recycling plans.
To promote and sustain uptake in garden waste
collection services.

Jun-18

To develop and deliver an action plan to work with the
community to change behaviour and reduce littering
across the district. Wherever possible, to share and
apply learning across the partnership.

Ongoing

To ensure safe working practices are in place and to
establish common processes and best practice.

Ongoing

Safety, Health and Environmental impact of operations
Monitoring, reporting and continuous review of
health and safety policy and practices of
GJWC contractors and service providers.

ALL

17

Appendix 4 – Waste Marketing and Behaviour Change Programme 2018/19

Activity

Notes

Funded
by

2018/19

Indicative
Costs

Q1

Q2

Q3

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

see
project
plan

>

>

>

>

>

>

Nov

Q4
Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Projects and
campaigns
Support groups
in setting up
Repair Cafes

Support the
setting up of the
two repair cafes
in the forest

GCC

£2K

Love your
Forest- Litter
reduction
project

Forest of Dean
partnering with
Hubbub.

FoD

-

GCC

£8K

Quality of
recycling

Page 20

Plastic
reduction

Food waste
reduction

Deliver
messages
regarding the
quality of the
recycling
Deliver
messages
regarding
plastic waste
reduction
Deliver
messages
regarding Food
waste reduction

GCC

£8K

GCC

£8K

>

Planning

Football
world
cup

>

>

>

Recycle
week

Christmas

Halloween

>

>

Your
Guide

>

>

Regular Activities
Garden Waste
Promotion
(FOD)

Direct mail;
email reminder;
bin hangers

email
&
mailing

FoD
£20k

Annual Waste
Calendar (FOD)
Garden Waste
Promotion
(CDC)
Garden Waste
Promotion
(CBC)

Direct mail

FoD

deliver

Adverts,
posters, media
PR

CDC

£1k

deliver

Posters, media
PR

CBC

£4k

deliver

18

>

Garden Waste
Promotion
(TBC)

direct mail ongoing to
customers to
remind them of
renewal date

Produce and
distribute the
annual waste
collection
calendar (TBC)

leaflet, letter,
postage

Your Guide
Advert (All)
Bi-monthly
comms planning
meeting

link to the key
messages in
each district
with all district
comms and
media officers
from all seven
GWP
authorities

-

-

TBC

-

GCC

£5k

-

-

Page 21

Real Nappies
Campaign

Ongoing

GCC

-

RFG website
maintenance

Ongoing

GCC

£400

HRC
Posters/Banners

Dates we intend
on updating the
posters/banners
at HRC's

GCC

Cotswold News
articles

-

Tewkesbury
Borough News
articles

TBC

£2K

prep

Press releases
and website

-

-

Bank holidays
and bad weather
messages (CDC)

Press releases
and website

-

-

prep

delivery

design

design

publish

new
contract
starts

Please
recycle/thank
you for
recycling

Football World Cup

Please recycle/thank you for
recycling

Christmas
what
happens
to
recycling

-

Bad weather
messages (FoD)

prep

19

Please recycle/thank you for
recycling

Bank holidays
and bad weather
messages (CBC)
Bank holidays
and bad weather
messages (TBC)

Press releases
and website

-

-

Press releases
and website

-

-

GCC

£0

GCC

£0

GCC

£8K

Other activities

Javelin Park

Page 22

Waste
composition
analysis

HRC Opening
times

Coordinate start
up messages
with UBB and
work with them
to develop the
onsite
education
facility.
Undertake 4
season
sampling of
kerbside and
HRC waste in
order to
understand the
current
composition of
residual waste.
Undertake
relevant
communications
with the public
and
stakeholders.
Following
review of HRC
opening times,
communicate
any changes to
the general
public.

Planning

Summer sort

Planning

Autumn sort

Potential change in opening times

20

Planning

Winter sort

Planning

Appendix 4 – Draft Budget 2018/19

Draft Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint
Waste Partnership 2018/19
Head of Service:

Wayne Lewis

Budget Area

Total
Budget
£'000

Joint Waste Management Unit
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
TOTAL - GJWP

365
-365
0
0

Waste Disposal
Royalty Payments
WCA Landfill and Composting
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Household Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Recycling Credits
Tipping Away
Closed Landfill Sites
WCA Fridges and TVs
Management Costs
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Waste Projects
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Marketing Promotions - Waste
TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL

-704
15,613
-24
15,589
5,457
-517
4,940
-5
4,492
28
29
78
24
-8
16
50
0
50
50
24,563

21

Page 23

Waste Collection
Household Waste
Bulky Household Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Food/Organic Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Green Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bring Sites
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Collection Schemes
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bulking of Recyclables
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Schemes Marketing
TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION

5,235
126
-131
-5
573
0
573
2,628
-2,514
114
521
-181
340
310
-78
232
5,844
-2,810
3,034
403
-590
-187
928
-946
-18
107
9,425

Street Cleaning

3,012

Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
Depreciation

1,861
660
598

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS

3,119

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

40,119

22

Page 24

Appendix 5 – Risk Register
Last Reviewed: Feb 2018

Read with Risk Appetite Matrix (see p.25)

Impact (threats)

Impact (opportunities)

v.Lo =

Negligible

Negligible

v.Lo =

Lo =
Med =
Hi =

Minor
Moderate
Major

Minor benefit
Moderate benefit
Major benefit

Lo =
Med =
Hi =

Catastrophic

Ground breaking benefit

v.Hi =

Ref

Area

Risk

Effect

Raw Score
Impact

prob.

Page 25

Pressure to reduce
budgets places
existing services
under financial
pressure. The
affordability of
existing services
becomes more
questionable.

Services may have to
change or service
providers have to save
money by adjusting the
service offered.

R2

Improvements to
services are harder
to make in a climate
of financial hardship.

Service providers can
only offer service
improvements by being
more efficient or by
making savings
elsewhere.

Med

Hi

R3

Waste growth per
household leads to
increased volumes
of waste requiring
collection and/or
treatment/disposal.

Budget pressure created
by increasing waste
volumes.

Med

Hi

R1

Financial

Med

Hi

23

score

Mitigation planned

Work with service
suppliers to either reduce
price or change service
offer to be more
affordable.
Work with service
suppliers to discuss
changes to bring forward
efficiencies which can be
re-invested. Evaluate
future service options
Continued public
engagement (through an
agreed GJWC
communications plan) and
interventions to encourage
waste prevention.

v.Hi =

Probability
Not
foreseeable
Unlikely
Possible
Likely
Almost
certain

Mitigated Score
Impact

Prob.

Lo

Hi

Lo

Hi

Med

Med

score

Income from sales of
recyclate (Risk)

R5

Ubico service costs
increase beyond
budgeted amounts.

Additional budget has to
be found, meaning that
other services may need
to be cut back.

R6

Withdrawal from
Europe results in
waste policy and
legislative
uncertainty.

Lack of clear focus or
direction for waste
management policy.

O1

DEFRA Environment
Plan and
forthcoming Waste &
Resources Strategy
provide policy
direction on waste
management.

Greater clarity and
direction on areas that the
JWC should focus on in
order to align with the
national agenda for
waste.

R7

JWT organisational
structure is not fit for
purpose.

The unit is not structured
in a way that provides
balance in terms of value
for money and demands.

Page 26

R4

Market values are
predicted to drop for
plastics and mixed paper
& card as a result of
Chinese market
restrictions.

Political

Organisational

Med

Hi

Hi

Hi

Med

Med

Hi

24

This is due to market
forces but maintaining high
quality of materials may
help reduce the impact.
May be necessary to
review the materials
accepted for recycling if
outlets become difficult to
find. Difficult to fully
mitigate for this global
issue.
Additional financial support
to be recruited by Ubico.
Monthly budget monitoring
by JWT and Partner
Councils as part of regular
contract monitoring and
financial reporting
processes.

Med

Hi

Hi

Med

Lo

Continue to base policy on
existing policy and
legislation for England &
Wales, which in the shortterm will remain "as is"
post-Brexit.

Med

Lo

Med

Review the Joint Municipal
Waste Management
Strategy once the national
Waste & Resources
Strategy is published.

Med

Med

Med

Ensure workload is
planned to deliver the
highest priorities and staff
are empowered to work
effectively and efficiently.

Med

Med

Review the current
structure to ensure work
plan and priorities can be
met.

Balance of resources
between partners.

R9

Failure to agree on a
future aligned
collection service.

Ambition to provide an
integrated service across
Gloucestershire (where a
business case exists) is
not met.

Page 27

R8

The level of demand and
expectation of the JWT
from partners is greater
than can be delivered
within current resources.

R10

Delay to the
construction and
commissioning of the
Javelin Park EfW
facility.

R11

Failure to make
transfer
arrangements for the
delivery of waste to
Javelin Park

Operational

R12

Driver shortages

Waste cannot be
delivered to the facility
and continues to be
landfilled.
Waste cannot be
delivered to the facility or
waste has to be direct
delivered by collection
vehicles over longer
distances.
Impact on service delivery
if not all rounds can be
deployed, particularly if
over a sustained period.
Wage pressure may also
become a factor.

Hi

Med

Med

Hi

Hi

Hi

Hi

25

Use the business planning
process to understand and
resolve how the JWT
resources are to be
utilised across partners. A
review of current
resources has been
included within the 201821 business plan.
Ensure an objective and
information led approach
to assess and agree future
options that also includes
public consultation.

Med

Med

Med

Med

Lo

Regular monitoring and
review of the management
and operating systems in
place with the contractor.
Contingency
arrangements through the
extension of current landfill
contracts.

Med

Lo

Lo

Procurement exercise to
secure transfer
arrangements.
Development of a direct
delivery contingency plan.

Med

Lo

Med

Work with contractors to
ensure they have policies
in place for driver training
and retention. Ensure
drivers have met CTC
requirements.

Hi

Med

No sites can be
brought forward for
new FoDDC depot
required by 2024.

R13

Unable to offer depot
premises for
bidders/service providers.

Page 28

R14

Inclement weather
affects waste and
recycling collection
service.

Service disruption caused
by bad weather.

R15

Capacity of
contractors to
develop / improve
services / make new
proposals

As service providers take
on more work, resources
can be stretched;
performance &
commitment to service
development can suffer.

Commercial

Hi

Hi

Med

26

Med

Commission site search
and site assessment work.
Act on findings.

Hi

Lo

Med

Ensure that emergency
plans and inclement
weather policies are
regularly updated and
shared with all appropriate
stakeholders. Conduct
reviews following each
incident to ensure plans
remain fit for purpose.

Med

Med

Med

Work with service
suppliers to ensure
changes are managed
with appropriate resources
and services are delivered
to the expected level.

Med

Lo

V.Hi

V.Hi

Hi

Hi

Med

Med

Lo

Lo

V.Lo

V.Lo
V.Lo

Lo

Med

Hi

V.Hi V.Hi

Hi

Med

Lo

Probability

Probability

Risk Register Matrix

V.Lo

Page 29

Negative Impact
(Threats)

Positive Impact
(Opportunities)

Acceptable risk level

Limited Opportunity

Mitigation desirable

Some scope for benefit

Mitigation essential

Significant opportunity

27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Residual Waste Project Update

Committee

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee

Committee Date

20th February 2018

Significant
Decision

No

Responsible
Officers

Rachel Ferris, Contract Manager, Gloucestershire County Council

Main Consultees

None.

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to update the committee on progress with
the construction of the Javelin Park Energy from Waste facility.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Committee:

Rachel.ferris@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Notes the contents of the report.

Resource
Implications

None.

Page 31

1. Background
1.1 Following a long and complex procurement Gloucestershire County Council (GCC)
formally awarded a contract to treat Gloucestershire’s residual waste to Urbaser
Balfour Beatty (UBB) in February 2013, which was re-signed in 2016. The contract
is for the treatment of residual waste that remains after residents have reduced,
reused and recycled as much as possible. Gloucestershire achieved a countywide
recycling rate of 52% in 2016/17 and will improve upon this in 2017/18. However,
there is still a significant amount of residual waste that should be diverted from
landfill.
1.2 UBB’s technical solution is incineration with energy recovery. The facility is being
built at Javelin Park, near Haresfield and will have capacity to treat all of
Gloucestershire’s residual household waste, whilst generating enough electricity to
supply up to 25,000 households.
2. Progress and future actions
2.1Construction work commenced in summer 2016 and continues on schedule.
Structures for all elements of the facility are now evident, with the key
subcontractors for civil engineering, processing equipment and gas cleaning all on
site. The site compound has been established (which contains offices for the project
team) and the electricity cabling works to connect the facility to the grid is underway.
2.2 Some of the main pieces of processing equipment are currently being installed
including the grate. Due to their size, these are installed first and then the shell of
the building is built around the installed equipment. Other works happening at
present include:
 Western Power Distribution (WPD) cabling works in the local area;
 Continuing construction of attenuation tanks and drainage around site;
 Digging trenches for power cables around site;
 Completion of foundations for the visitors centre and commenced steelwork;
 Continued concrete pour for incinerator bottom ash hall walls; and
 Installation of concrete columns and beams in turbine hall.
2.3 Over the next month electricity cabling work will continue, as will the installation of
processing equipment. This will include commencement of work on flue gas
treatment equipment. Construction of the visitors centre will also continue. Appendix
1 shows some photographs of the site.
3. Mobilisation
3.1
The facility is due to be operational in summer 2019. Commissioning will begin
early in 2019 with hot commissioning (the point at which some waste begins to be
received and processed) commencing in the spring of 2019. Prior to this, GCC, district
councils and service providers such as Ubico and Biffa need to be familiar with the site
and the processes for waste delivery.
3.2
From summer 18, regular meetings between GCC, district councils, collection
service providers and UBB will commence. These will be coordinated by the Joint
Waste Team. The meetings will be to prepare for the delivery of waste to the facility
and to make sure that all waste collection operatives together with their management
and supervisory staff are familiar with the site and its rules.

Page 32

Appendix 1 - Photos from site
Plate 1: Incinerator Bottom Ash Hall

Plate 2: Installation of the grate, the turbine hall and the steelwork for the
flue gas treatment area

Page 33

Plate 3: Bunker

Plate 4: Grate installation

Page 34

Agenda Item 8
Summary of the Government’s 25 Year Environment Plan

Committee

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee

Committee Date

20th February 2018

Significant
Decision

No

Responsible
Officers

Andy Pritchard

Main Consultees

n/a

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to present a summary of the 25 year
Environment Plan recently published by Government.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Committee:
Note the report.

Resource
Implications

None.

Page 35

1. Introduction
The Government’s 25 Year Environment Plan was published on the 11th January. It
sets out the government’s vision on a broad range of environmental issues:


Sustainable land management



Protecting nature and enhancing landscapes



Strengthening links between the environment and health & wellbeing



Resource efficiency, pollution and waste



Protecting seas, oceans and the global environment.

On Waste, the plan states that:
''We are committed to supporting comprehensive and frequent waste and
recycling collections which protect local amenity and ensure that products are
recycled as much as possible, returning high quality materials back to the
economy.''
Waste related actions include:


Publishing a new Resources and Waste strategy later in 2018 aimed at
making the UK a world leader in resource efficiency. It will set out the
approach to reducing waste, promoting markets for secondary materials,
incentivising producers to design better products and how we can better
manage materials at the end of life by targeting environmental impacts.



Looking across the whole lifecycle, launching a call for evidence in 2018
seeking views on how the tax system or charges could reduce the amount
of single use plastics waste.

2. Production
At the production stage, producers will be encouraged to take more responsibility for
the environmental impacts of their products and rationalise the number of different
types of plastic in use by:



Government working with industry to rationalise packaging formats and
materials formats to make sure that more plastics can be easily recycled
and the quality of collected recycled plastics is improved.
Reforming Producer Responsibility systems (including packaging waste
regulations) to incentivise producers to take greater responsibility for the
environmental impacts of their products. This will include exploring
extending producer responsibility requirements to plastic products not
currently covered by existing regimes to create a better market for recycled
plastic.

3. Consumption
At the consumption stage, the amount of plastic in circulation will be reduced through
reducing demand for single-use plastic by:



Removing all consumer single use plastics from the central government
estate offices.
Extending uptake of the 5p plastic bag charge to small retailers, exploring
whether compulsory options are needed if voluntary agreements prove
ineffective.

Page 36





Supporting water companies, high street retailers, coffee shops and
transport hubs to offer new refill points for people to top-up water bottles for
free in every major city and town in England. The water industry plans to
create a nationwide network of refill points, and an app to help people find
the nearest place to refill their bottles with water free of charge.
Working with retailers and the Waste and Resources Action Programme
(WRAP) to explore introducing plastic-free supermarket aisles in which all
the food is loose.

4. End of use
At the end of use stage, the government will make it easier for people to recycle by:




Continuing to support the industry led on-pack recycling labelling system
and encouraging all brands and retailers to use this systems to provide
information to householders.
Continuing to implement the Litter Strategy to reduce plastic litter and
littering behaviour.
Implementing voluntary and regulatory interventions that can cut the amount
of commonly littered items, and improve recycling and packaging reuse.
This includes considering advice from the Voluntary & Economic Incentives
Working group (set up under the Litter Strategy), which is currently looking
at measures to reduce littering and promote recycling of drinks containers.

5. End of Life
At the end of life/waste management stage, government will improve the rate of
recycling. Through the Framework for Greater Consistency, WRAP is working with
industry and local authorities to ensure that a consistent set of materials are collected
by all local authorities. There is a desire to accelerate this shift to consistency in the
materials collected.


Working with the waste management industry and reprocessors to
significantly increase the proportion of plastic packaging that is collected
and recycled.

6. Food Waste
Recycling food waste is also a key priority. Government will work towards no food
waste entering landfill by 2030. Many local authorities have introduced separate
collection of food waste and government will work to support an increase in numbers so
that the amount of food waste sent to landfill continues to decline. Action will also be
taken to support the redistribution of unsold edible and nutritious surplus stock from
food businesses to individuals in need. As a starting point, WRAP announced at the
end of last year a new £0.5m fund for charities who redistribute surplus food from food
businesses to those in need.
7. Litter
On Litter:
Actions include:
Continuing to implement the Government’s Litter Strategy for England, including:


Introducing new regulations to improve local authorities’ enforcement
powers, supported by new guidance on its proportionate use.

Page 37




Developing a national anti-littering campaign, led by the government and
funded by the private sector.
Distributing a £450,000 Litter Innovation Fund to pilot, implement and
evaluate small scale local research projects that could be replicated more
widely.

8. Waste & Resources Strategy
To support the delivery of the plan, the government will set targets and measure and
report on progress. The new Waste & Resources Strategy, to be published later in
2018, will provide greater focus on areas specific to the JWC. It is likely to cover areas
we are already working on, but the timing of this will help to inform a review of our own
Joint Strategy.

Page 38

Agenda Item 9
Management Accounts Monitoring Report 2017/18

Committee

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee

Committee Date

20 February 2018

Significant
Decision

No

Responsible
Officers

Rachel Capon, Contracts Manager (Collection & Street Scene
– West), Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team
(01594 812 406), rachel.capon@fdean.gov.uk

Main Consultees

None

Purpose of Report

The report sets out:

Recommendations



The financial performance of the individual authorities within
the JWC against their approved annual budget for the first
nine months of the current financial year;



The combined position across authorities;



An indicative draft 2018/19 Revenue Budget for the whole
partnership.

It is recommended that the Committee:
a) Notes the financial performance as contained in this report.
b) Notes the indicative draft 2018/19 Revenue Budget, but also
that this may change as partner budgets are firmed up.

Resource
Implications

None

1. Background
1.1. When the Joint Waste Committee was formed it was agreed that budget setting and
service charges are retained decisions for the individual authorities within the partnership.
1.2. The operational budgets for waste disposal, waste collection and street cleaning remain
with their respective authority but are managed by officers within the Joint Waste Team.
1.3. The majority of the operational budget consists of payments to contractors:
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) contracts include Cory for waste disposal and the
local authority company Ubico for Household Recycling Centres; Forest of Dean District
Council (FODDC) contracts include Biffa for waste collection and street cleaning; whilst
Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC), Cotswold District Council (CDC) and Tewkesbury
Borough Council (TBC) waste collection and street cleaning services are provided by
Ubico.

Page 39

1.4. As GCC is the Administering Authority for the Joint Waste Committee, budgets associated
with supporting the Joint Waste Committee are reported within their figures. Staffing costs
for the Joint Waste Team are the largest element of this budget. These are transferred
from each partner organisation’s budget to the Administering Authority on a quarterly basis.
2. Current Financial Position
2.1. The combined revenue budgets for GCC, CBC, CDC, FODDC and TBC is shown at
Appendix 1. The current forecast year end revenue position is an overspend of £137,000
(0.34% of the net budget). This is based on monitoring forecasts made in January and
actual financial transactions to the end of December 2017.
3. Waste Disposal Costs
3.1. Gloucestershire County Council’s revenue budget at Appendix 2 shows the net forecast
budget position for waste disposal is a balanced budget.
3.2. A reduction in the cost of waste disposal against budget is being experienced as a result of
the continued high performance of Stroud kerbside services and the increase in recycling
at FODDC and, more recently, CBC.
3.3. This is offset in the main by increased costs of running the Household Recycling Centres
(HRCs) and investing in equipment at Pyke and Hempsted HRCs.
3.4. A further underspend in JWT management costs has arisen due to some vacancies within
the team.
4. Waste Collection Costs
4.1. Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC)
4.1.1. The CBC revenue budget at Appendix 3 forecasts an overspend of £183,000.
4.1.2. New vehicles came into operation in October 2017. Use of older, less efficient,
refuse vehicles, gave rise to additional Ubico contract charges of approximately
£120,000 for the first half year. These additional costs will be mitigated by a finance
lease payment due back to the council from Ubico for the same period, due to the
delay in purchase of new vehicles.
4.1.3. The revised recycling collection service began in October. To operate at full
efficiency residents should pre-sort recyclable materials. This and higher volume of
material being presented has made it necessary to currently have two extra crews to
complete the collections. This has cost approximately £14,000 per month from the
beginning of December. A business case is being developed to consider what
mitigation measures can be introduced and whether this additional spend should
continue. The business case will revisit the assumptions made in the original
modelling and evaluate the options available going forwards. The forecast includes
£100,000 to allow for the two extra crews to continue until the end of the financial
year, plus other implementation costs associated with the project. It also includes
costs associated with extra activities undertaken in response to the inclement
weather over the Christmas period.

Page 40

.
4.1.4. As volumes have increased, there may be increased income from recycling credits,
landfill diversion payments and sale of recyclables. As the service has yet to fully
settle down, it is not yet possible to accurately forecast this or the effect of any
impact on bring sites or HRC
4.1.5. The cost of recycling waste wood previously met by Ubico was not factored into the
budget and is expected to cost £63,000 in 2017/18. The budget for this element of
the service has been built in to the 2018/19 budget. Income from cardboard
recycling has been adversely affected by a sharp fall in the value of this commodity
from £97 to £67 per tonne leading to a projected loss of income of £50,000. This is
partially offset by a forecast increase in income from Green Waste of £30,000.
4.2. Cotswold District Council (CDC)
4.2.1. CDC’s revenue budget at Appendix 4 shows a forecast outturn underspend of
£22,000 however, there may be an impact on income as a result of the anticipated
fall in recyclate values in Quarter 4.
4.2.2. In Quarter 1, Ubico reported high levels of agency staff usage, resulting in an
overspend against recycling. Ubico assigns all agency loaders to work on recycling
collections so as to minimise new starters’ use of the mechanical bin lifts which are
fitted to the refuse and garden waste vehicles. We are seeing the extent of likely
overspend decrease as agency costs are now being coded against other parts of the
service, however it is still too early to see if that will fully offset the overspend of
£84,000 currently forecast for recycling.
4.2.3. Income from green waste is forecast to be £93,000 higher than budgeted. The
number of subscribers has again increased resulting in a greater level of income than
anticipated.
4.2.4. Expenditure on garden waste scheme promotion is forecast to be incurred before the
end of the year. However, the Recycling Schemes Marketing is forecast to
underspend by £9,000.
4.3. Forest of Dean District Council (FODDC)
4.3.1. The FODDC revenue budget at Appendix 5 currently forecasts a balanced budget.
4.3.2. Income for recycling materials is predicted to be £65,000 under budget. This is due
to a reduction in income for paper and card. The market for mixed papers has been
fluctuating throughout the year from a high of £87.50 per tonne to a low of £43 per
tonne. As mixed papers are a large proportion of the tonnage collected for recycling,
this has a significant impact on income. There has also been a drop in the income
for plastic bottles which is having a further negative impact on the budget.
4.3.3. The shortfall in income for recyclate is being offset by the following:
 Income from garden waste licence sales being £18,000 higher than anticipated.
 Street cleaning is underspent by £17,000 as the contractor has developed safe
systems of work for cleansing of roads internally so there was less expenditure
on third party temporary traffic management than anticipated.
 The budgets for replacement of waste containers are underspent across the
services by £18,000
 Marketing budgets are underspend by £12,000.

Page 41

4.4. Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC)
4.4.1. The TBC revenue budget at Appendix 6 forecasts an underspend of £24,000.
4.4.2. The Ubico contract is projected to be £36,000 overspent at year end, along with a
loss on garden waste income of £58,000.
4.4.3. This is being offset by one off savings on the budget for the end of life for the
collection vehicles, gains on the materials recycling facility (MRF) gate fees paid and
on recycling credits received.
5. Draft 2018/19 Revenue Budget
5.1. Appendix 7 shows the draft 2018/19 Revenue Budget summary for the whole partnership.

These are indicative figures only. The partners are currently in the process of setting
budgets and the figures may change as the budget setting progresses, subject to member
approval.

Page 42

Appendix 1 – Total Revenue Budget Summary across all JWC partners
Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 2017/18
Head of Service:
Budget Area

Joint Waste Management Unit
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Joint Improvement Board
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
TOTAL - GJWP
Waste Disposal
Royalty Payments
WCA Landfill and Composting
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Household Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Recycling Credits
Tipping Away
Closed Landfill Sites
WCA Fridges and TVs
Management Costs
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Waste Projects
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Marketing Promotions - Waste
TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL

Wayne Lewis

Analysis of progress to:

Total
Budget
£'000

Profiled Budget
To Date
£'000

Actual
To Date
£'000

Variance
To Date
£'000

31/12/2017

Forecast
Outturn
£'000

Forecast Year
End Variance
£'000

314
-273
41

310
-136
174

270
-133
137

-40
3
-37

309
-264
45

-5
9
4

0
-41
-41
0

0
0
0
174

0
-38
-38
99

0
-38
-38
-75

-7
-38
-45
0

-7
3
-4
0

-671

-463

-477

-14

-675

-4

16,012
0
16,012
5,154
-262
4,892
-4
4,267
56
26
80

11,049
0
11,049
0
3,577
-175
3,402
-3
2,650
0
18
55

10,750
-36
10,714
0
3,985
-410
3,575
0
2,294
0
19
51

-299
-36
-335
0
408
-235
173
3
-356
0
1
-4

15,436
-36
15,400
0
6,062
-530
5,532
-5
4,400
56
33
76

-576
-36
-612
0
908
-268
640
-1
133
0
7
-4

2
-8
-6

2
0
2

0
0
0

-2
0
-2

4
-8
-4

2
0
2

50
0
50
50
24,752

30
0
30
37
16,777

44
-14
30
9
16,215

14
-14
0
-28
-562

58
-14
44
34
24,891

8
-14
-6
-16
139

Page 43

Waste Collection
Household Waste
Bulky Household Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Food/Organic Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Green Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bring Sites
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Collection Schemes
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bulking of Recyclables
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Schemes Marketing
TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION

4,874

3,838

3,759

0
-79

4,814

-60

61
-149
-88

46
-112
-66

60
-146
-86

14
-34
-20

61
-164
-103

0
-15
-15

513
0
513

443
0
443

419
0
419

-24
0
-24

482
0
482

-31
0
-31

2,420
-2,468
-48

1,932
-2,249
-317

1,937
-2,243
-306

5
6
11

2,438
-2,551
-113

18
-83
-65

571
-181
390

428
-136
292

426
-121
305

-2
15
13

571
-181
390

0
0
0

303
-77
226

227
-57
170

222
-55
167

-5
2
-3

298
-77
221

-5
0
-5

5,680
-2,783
2,897

4,456
-1,992
2,464

4,483
-2,032
2,451

27
-40
-13

5,875
-2,743
3,132

195
40
235

358
-590
-232

268
-442
-174

324
-285
39

56
157
213

421
-540
-119

63
50
113

869
-907
-38
122
8,616

675
-708
-33
73
6,690

680
-734
-54
41
6,735

5
-26
-21
-32
45

889
-907
-18
90
8,776

20
0
20
-32
160

Street Cleaning

2,850

2,254

2,196

-58

2,827

-23

Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
Depreciation
TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS

2,151
601
1,062
3,814

176
334
298
808

176
250
350
776

0
-84
52
-32

2,151
462
1,062
3,675

0
-139
0
-139

40,032

26,703

26,021

-682

40,169

137

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Page 44

Appendix 2 – Gloucestershire County Council Revenue Budget Summary

Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 2017/18
Head of Service:
Partner: Gloucestershire County Council
Budget Area

Joint Waste Management Unit
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Joint Improvement Board
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
TOTAL - GJWP
Waste Disposal
Royalty Payments
WCA Landfill and Composting
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Household Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Recycling Credits
Tipping Away
Closed Landfill Sites
WCA Fridges and TVs
Management Costs
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Waste Projects
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Marketing Promotions - Waste
TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL
Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Wayne Lewis

Analysis of progress to:

Total
Budget
£'000

Profiled Budget
To Date
£'000

Actual
To Date
£'000

Variance
To Date
£'000

31/12/2017

Forecast
Outturn
£'000

Forecast Year
End Variance
£'000

314
-273
41

310
-136
174

270
-133
137

-40
3
-37

309
-264
45

-5
9
4

0
-41
-41
0

0
0
0
174

0
-38
-38
99

0
-38
-38
-75

-7
-38
-45
0

-7
3
-4
0

-671

-463

-477

-14

-675

-4

16,012
0
16,012

11,049
0
11,049

10,750
-36
10,714

-299
-36
-335

15,436
-36
15,400

-576
-36
-612

5,154
-262
4,892
-4
4,267
56
26
80

3,577
-175
3,402
-3
2,650
0
18
55

3,985
-410
3,575
0
2,294
0
19
51

408
-235
173
3
-356
0
1
-4

6,062
-530
5,532
-5
4,400
56
33
76

908
-268
640
-1
133
0
7
-4

2
-8
-6

2
0
2

0
0
0

-2
0
-2

4
-8
-4

2
0
2

50
0
50
50
24,752

30
0
30
37
16,777

44
-14
30
9
16,215

14
-14
0
-28
-562

58
-14
44
34
24,891

8
-14
-6
-16
139

1,112
328
1,440

0
164
164

0
86
86

0
-78
-78

1,112
189
1,301

0
-139
-139

26,192

17,115

16,400

-715

26,192

0

Page 45

Appendix 3 – Cheltenham Borough Council Revenue Budget Summary
Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 2017/18
Head of Service:
Partner: Cheltenham Borough Council
Budget Area

Waste Collection
Household Waste
Bulky Household Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Green Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bring Sites
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Collection Schemes
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bulking of Recyclables
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Schemes Marketing
TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION

Wayne Lewis

Analysis of progress to:

Total
Budget
£'000

Profiled Budget
To Date
£'000

Actual
To Date
£'000

Variance
To Date
£'000

31/12/2017

Forecast
Outturn
£'000

Forecast Year
End Variance
£'000

1,377

1,033

1,041

8

1,377

0

27
-48
-21

20
-36
-16

30
-44
-14

10
-8
2

27
-48
-21

0
0
0

314
-595
-281

236
-446
-210

233
-370
-137

-3
76
73

314
-625
-311

0
-30
-30

571
-181
390

428
-136
292

426
-121
305

-2
15
13

571
-181
390

0
0
0

162
-66
96

121
-49
72

121
-46
75

0
3
3

162
-66
96

0
0
0

1,595
-405
1,190

1,196
-304
892

1,174
-348
826

-22
-44
-66

1,695
-405
1,290

100
0
100

358
-590
-232

268
-442
-174

324
-285
39

56
157
213

421
-540
-119

63
50
113

579
-637
-58
23
2,484

434
-478
-44
17
1,862

423
-504
-81
41
2,095

-11
-26
-37
24
233

579
-637
-58
23
2,667

0
0
0
0
183

Street Cleaning

800

600

599

-1

800

0

Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
Depreciation
TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS

419
31
45
495

0
23
0
23

0
23
52
75

0
0
52
52

419
31
45
495

0
0
0
0

3,779

2,485

2,769

284

3,962

183

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Page 46

Appendix 4 – Cotswold District Council
Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 2017/18
Head of Service:
Partner: Cotswold District Council
Budget Area

Waste Collection
Household Waste
Bulky Household Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Green Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Collection Schemes
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Schemes Marketing
TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION
Street Cleaning
Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
Depreciation
TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Wayne Lewis

Analysis of progress to:

Total
Budget
£'000

Profiled Budget
To Date
£'000

Actual
To Date
£'000

Variance
To Date
£'000

31/12/2017

Forecast
Outturn
£'000

Forecast Year
End Variance
£'000

1,179

970

970

0

1,179

0

-36
-36

-27
-27

-37
-37

0
-10
-10

0
-40
-40

0
-4
-4

1,367
-627
740

1,137
-623
514

1,144
-718
426

7
-95
-88

1,367
-720
647

0
-93
-93

1,716
-1,035
681
13
2,577

1,400
-706
694
9
2,160

1,461
-743
718
0
2,077

61
-37
24
-9
-83

1,800
-1,035
765
4
2,555

84
0
84
-9
-22

1,068

881

869

-12

1,068

0

135
40
91
266

0
30
0
30

0
31
0
31

0
1
0
1

135
40
91
266

0
0
0
0

3,911

3,071

2,977

-94

3,889

-22

Page 47

Appendix 5 – Forest of Dean District Council Revenue Budget Summary
Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 2017/18
Head of Service:
Partner: Forest of Dean District Council
Budget Area

Waste Collection
Household Waste
Bulky Household Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Food/Organic Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Green Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bring Sites
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Collection Schemes
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Schemes Marketing
TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION

Wayne Lewis

Analysis of progress to:

Total
Budget
£'000

Profiled Budget
To Date
£'000

Actual
To Date
£'000

Variance
To Date
£'000

31/12/2017

Forecast
Outturn
£'000

Forecast Year
End Variance
£'000

1,356

1,017

966

-51

1,344

-12

34
-28
6

26
-21
5

30
-29
1

4
-8
-4

34
-28
6

0
0
0

101
0
101

99
0
99

98
0
98

-1
0
-1

101
0
101

0
0
0

392
-548
-156

270
-548
-278

257
-566
-309

-13
-18
-31

391
-566
-175

-1
-18
-19

141
-11
130

106
-8
98

101
-9
92

-5
-1
-6

136
-11
125

-5
0
-5

1,234
-781
453
56
1,946

949
-586
363
42
1,346

929
-526
403
3
1,254

-20
60
40
-39
-92

1,234
-716
518
44
1,963

0
65
65
-12
17

Street Cleaning

550

412

372

-40

533

-17

Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
Depreciation
TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS

234
137
397
768

176
68
298
542

176
61
298
535

0
-7
0
-7

234
137
397
768

0
0
0
0

3,264

2,300

2,161

-139

3,264

0

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Page 48

Appendix 6 – Tewkesbury Borough Council Revenue Budget Summary
Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership 2017/18
Head of Service:
Partner: Tewkesbury Borough Council
Budget Area

Waste Collection
Household Waste
Bulky Household Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Food/Organic Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Green Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Collection Schemes
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Schemes Marketing
TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION

Wayne Lewis

Analysis of progress to:
2
Profiled Budget
To Date
£'000

Total
Budget
£'000

3
Actual
To Date
£'000

4
Variance
To Date
£'000

31/12/2017

5
Forecast
Outturn
£'000

6
Forecast Year
End Variance
£'000

962

818

782

-36

914

-48

-37
-37

-28
-28

-36
-36

0
-8
-8

-48
-48

0
-11
-11

412

344

321

412

344

347
-698
-351

381

321

-23
0
-23

381

-31
0
-31

289
-632
-343

303
-589
-286

14
43
57

366
-640
-274

19
58
77

1,135
-562
573

911
-396
515

919
-415
504

8
-19
-11

1,146
-587
559

11
-25
-14

290
-270
20
30
1,609

241
-230
11
5
1,322

257
-230
27
-3
1,309

16
0
16
-8
-13

310
-270
40
19
1,591

20
0
20
-11
-18

Street Cleaning

432

361

356

-5

426

-6

Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
Depreciation
TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS

251
65
529
845

0
49
0
49

0
49
0
49

0
0
0
0

251
65
529
845

0
0
0
0

2,886

1,732

1,714

-18

2,862

-24

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

Page 49

6. Appendix 7 – Draft 2018/19 Revenue Budget

Draft Revenue Budget Summary - Gloucestershire Joint
Waste Partnership 2018/19
Head of Service:

Budget Area

Wayne Lewis

Total
Budget
£'000

Joint Waste Management Unit
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
TOTAL - GJWP

365
-365
0
0

Waste Disposal
Royalty Payments
WCA Landfill and Composting
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Household Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Recycling Credits
Tipping Away
Closed Landfill Sites
WCA Fridges and TVs
Management Costs
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Waste Projects
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Marketing Promotions - Waste
TOTAL - WASTE DISPOSAL

-704
15,613
-24
15,589
5,457
-517
4,940
-5
4,492
28
29
78
24
-8
16
50
0
50
50
24,563

Page 50

Waste Collection
Household Waste
Bulky Household Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Food/Organic Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Green Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Centres
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bring Sites
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Collection Schemes
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Bulking of Recyclables
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Trade Waste
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Expenditure
Recycling Schemes Marketing
TOTAL - WASTE COLLECTION

5,235
126
-131
-5
573
0
573
2,628
-2,514
114
521
-181
340
310
-78
232
5,844
-2,810
3,034
403
-590
-187
928
-946
-18
107
9,425

Street Cleaning

3,012

Central Costs
Central Support Costs
JWT Staffing Costs
Depreciation

1,861
660
598

TOTAL - CENTRAL COSTS

3,119

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE

40,119

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
ACTION PLAN UPDATE

Committee

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee

Committee Date

20 February 2018

Significant
Decision

No

Responsible
Officers

Wayne Lewis, Head of Joint Waste Team, 01452 425504,
wayne.lewis@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Main Consultees

None

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to update members on the progress of the
2017/18 action plan.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Committee:
a) Notes the progress of the current (2017/20) action plan

Resource
Implications

1.

None. The current revenue budget position for each of the partners is
reported separately on today’s agenda.

Background

1.1 This report provides an update on progress against the Joint Waste Committee
(JWC) action plan to February 2018.
2.

Action plan 2017/20

2.1 The current action plan was agreed by the JWC on 21 February 2017 (Agenda
item 7) and sets out a three year work programme. Appendix 1 provides a
summary of progress to February 2018.

Page 53

2.2 Notable achievements include:





2.3

The award of new contracts for the sale of recyclable materials by
Cheltenham B.C;
The introduction of a new and improved kerbside recycling collection
service for Cheltenham B.C;
The development of comprehensive waste and recycling collection
service policy and procedures for Tewkesbury B.C;
The on-going construction of the new Javelin Park Energy from Waste
facility; and,
The delivery of a successful, multi-agency anti-litter campaign within
Forest of Dean.

Less progress has been made on:
 Reviewing and establishing how new developments that cross boundaries
will be serviced – it is proposed that this work forms part of the
benchmarking and options appraisal work to be completed next year as
part of the GJWC service alignment project.
 A review of the bulky waste collection service in Tewkesbury –
Improvements have been made to the bulky waste collection service,
which has reduced the lead times to an acceptable level. A detailed
service options review will be carried forward in to the 2018/21 work plan,
the aim of which will be to increase reuse and recycling of bulky items.
3. Updates from Non-voting Partners
3.1Gloucester City Council has provided an update on its recent activity and
progress; this is included at appendix 3. Stroud District Council will provide a
verbal update to the meeting.

Page 54

Appendix 1
Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee
Action Plan - 2017/18
Project
Strategic Direction

Affecting

1

Service Integration Routemap

All

2

Continue to encourage Gloucester City Council and Stroud
District Council to join JWC

All

Objective and /or Outcomes

Updated - January 2018
Progress Update

To develop options and pathway to Service Integration in
accordance with the Accord set out in para 1.4 of the plan
To develop an overall strategy and optimised delivery
framework for an efficient, effective and inclusive resource
management in Gloucestershire

JWC workshop held on 5/12/17 with key outcomes reflected in
2018/21 GJWC work plan.

To consider the options for the transfer of waste after closure of
Hempsted Landfill site (date TBC) and at end of the Cory
Contract August 2018
To ensure that Depot/ Bulking Facility is in place in readiness
for 2024
To procure mobile compaction capability for Hempsted and
Pyke Quarry in 2017/18 and Wingmoor and Oak Quarry in
2018/19

Procurement to secure bulking and transfer services in
readiness for summer 2019 is underway. Soft Market Testing
exercise recently completed.

HoS meeting regularly with Gloucester City to develop plans
for the city council to potentially join the GJWC.

Infrastructure
3

Waste Transfer Options

All JWC partners

4

FODDC Depot project

FODDC

4A

Replace Static Compactors at 4 Household Recycling Centres
(HRCs)

GCC

Site search and evaluation is underway.
Procurement project is underway. Completion for Hempsted
and Pyke is now expected summer 2018. Wingmoor and Oak
for 2019.

Page 55

Procurement

5

Work with Ubico to develop a Procurement Strategy for
vehicles and other capital items

All

To be used for projects from April 2017, e.g. TBC, CBC and
other partners as required.

6

Planning for mobilisation of FoDDC street cleaning contract in
August 2018

FoDDC

New contract mobilisation

7

Procurement of a replacement composting contract for garden
waste collected in Gloucestershire.

All

New contract to compost garden waste from August 2018

8

Assist CBC in arranging new contracts for recycling materials
from October 2017 when current contracts expire

CBC

New contracts for recycling materials

Go Shared Services procurement team has set up an e
tendering system which is being used for vehicle procurement
for Ubico contracts. Ubico has written and approved its own
procurement strategy and associated process.
Project team established. Mobilisation project is in progress.
This is included within the extension of the integrated contract
with Enovert (formerly Cory) through to Jan 2020 (the
extension includes landfill disposal, buking & haulage, green
waste composting and monitoring of closed landfills).
Tender process completed and lots awarded to successful
bidders. Contracts now in place for all commodities.

Project
Service Development, Efficiency and Improvement
9

To review and establish how new developments that cross
boundaries will be serviced

Support CDC in appraising the options available for recycling
10 service improvement in 2019 when the current vehicles reach
their end of life

Affecting

Objective and /or Outcomes

TBC/CBC/GC

To undertake a business case for a consistent service in the
JCS area around Cheltenham which crosses boundaries

CDC

To improve the services offered to residents and increase the
amount of waste diverted from landfill into recycling streams.

Progress Update

Comparable collection costs for CBC & TBC services have
been drafted to assist in discussions between the authorities.
SMG to consider further and develop next steps.
Project inception completed. Project initiation document, plan
and potential collection options being developed. Options
appraisal work and consultation with residents will support the
work required under the service integration route map.
Any improvements to Swindon Road on hold until the direction
of the infrastructure project has been confirmed. Opportunities
for recycling carpets and mattresses will be included in the new
materials recycling procurement in early 2018. Action to be
carried forward into 2018/19 action plan.

Explore new recycling opportunities at HRCs including Swindon
11
GCC & CBC
Road

Given the wider infrastructure project and consideration by
CBC over the usage of the Swindon Road Depot, this action
may be a lower priority than others.

12 Monitor recycling banks usage in FoDDC

Following the expansion of the kerbside recycling service in
August 2017 prepare a report to assess the impact of the
removal of the 34 recycling bank sites on customer satisfaction, Measurement of tonnages from individual bank sites being
performance and cost by March 18. .
monitored for 3 month period to establish usage at each site.

Page 56

13

Working with Ubico, implement preferred option for recycling
service redesign in Cheltenham including round optimisation.

FoDDC

CBC

New service launched on 16th October 17. Some residents
Having identified the preferred option (expected Autumn 2016), continuing to present mixed recycling which is slowing recycling
to plan and implement new service within time and financial
crews down. Good take up in recycling service and far better
parameters during Autumn 2017
performance than modelled currently being seen. Further work
being completed to understand what effect the increase in
participation will have on resources.

14 Procurement round 2 on HRC materials

GCC

Ensure best value for HRC materials costs and income.

15 Residual waste composition analysis

GCC

Commence planning for this to be delivered during 2018.

To work with Ubico to undertake a review of the discretionary
16 trade waste service to ensure it is operating on a viable
commercial level

TBC

.

Review of garden waste charging process and system to
consider annual renewal and licence/tag system

TBC

To improve the service and renewal process implementing
sticker service and annual renewal system.

TBC

To consider service options with the aim of improving service
levels and reducing waste to landfill following an audit of the
service and assist in implementing the recommendations.

17

18 Bulky waste collection service review

18A

Review options for dewatering and recycling street sweepings
and gulley waste

All

To assess and, if economic, arrange recycling of street
sweepings and gulley waste.

Wood recycling contract commenced 1st January and is a
continuation of our service with South Wales Wood Recycling.
All other materials contracts will commence 1st April.
A contractor is to be appointed from the ESPO framework and
the first seasonal sort will take place summer 2018.
The final draft report has been produced and options to be
discussed with SMG. TBC has identified a resource to market
the services in the short term to promote the service and work
with internal departments to increase the customer base.
The project is on track. The licences have been developed and
a design & postage contract has been let. Mailing going out in
early February to inform residents to apply for 18/19 licence.
New systems in place and training been delivered to customer
services team.

This project will be delivered in 2018/19.
Agreement in principle reached with Enovert, but no further
progress yet made.

Project

Affecting

Objective and /or Outcomes

Progress Update

Page 57

Project
Organisational / Systems
Recruitment of a new Head of Service
19

Complete Phase 2 of JWC Restructuring

20 Javelin Park project handover

21

Support 2020 project changes - e.g. changes to CRM systems
that impact on service delivery

Affecting

Objective and /or Outcomes

JWT

To be completed by end of June 2017 and December 2017
respectively. HoS top priority is to deliver the Accord.

GCC

To implement plan to transfer responsibility for the contract to
the JWT.

2020 partners

To ensure continuity of service, and quality of service delivery
and customer satisfaction

Progress Update
Head of Service appointed in October. Due to the delay in
appointing, the phase 2 team structure review is yet to be
completed.
Regular project meetings involving the JWT are taking place.
The JWT also attends meetings of the UBB Community Liaison
Group. Regular project updates to be provided to the GJWC
commencing Feb 18.
Due to the formation of Publica this project was delayed. The
CRM system at the FODDC will not be supported from 1 April
2018, so a new system is required to process service requests
(e.g. bin orders, missed bins, bulky waste service requests). A
project team has now been established and the JWT are
providing input.

Communications and Behavioural Change

All JWC partners

To minimise waste to landfill on an average per household
basis.

23 SDC service change follow-up work

GCC / SDC

Communications support to maintain participation rates after
initial surge has settled down (potential to include bin
stickering)

24 Javelin Park Communications

GCC

JWT to work with GCC Residual Project officers and UBB to
ensure consistency in the delivery of comms key messages.

22

Increasing recycling participation by engagement e.g. the
Helping People to Recycle More project

Page 58
Support CBC in enforcing no-side waste and closed bin lid
25
policy

CBC

Communications campaign to promote the blue bin collection
26 service ensuring residents recycle the right material and reduce TBC
contamination

Once necessary enforcement support has been secured, to
control levels of residual waste being presented - in support of
Helping People to Recycle More project.

Minimise contamination to maintain a clean comingled
recycling service which reduces the cost to the authority.

A project is currently underway at FODDC to identify properties
that have a second unauthorised refuse bin with the intention of
collecting the additional bins and encouraging these residents
to recycle instead (thus reducing the amount of waste sent to
landfill). Preparations are underway for the annual calendar/
garden waste mailing which goes out in February and will also
include a leaflet on recycling tips.
The JWT has met with SDC during the summer to consider the
best use of this funding. Current pressures on SDC include the
ongoing volume of requests for extra recycling containers, and
support for this will be offered, along with the promotion of key
messages relating to keeping paper and cardboard dry and the
use of plastic bag caddy liners.

Ongoing. Shared communications planning is now underway.
Business case for a support officer to resource this project (and
to help address wider capacity and resilience issues) has been
presented to CBC for consideration to be built in to 2018/19
budget. Enforcement process and environmental services
policy are being updated and will be presented to Cabinet for
formal approval.
Work has begun with the MRF operator Suez to identify similar
sorts of items that residents are recycling incorrectly. Press
releases have generated some interest and work has been
carried out with some housing providers to improve the
recycling in communal bin stores. This is set to continue
throughout the remainder of the year.

Project

27 Promote garden waste collection schemes in all districts

To explore options for developing a more integrated, efficient
28 and effective countywide approach to flytipping enforcement
and prevention.

Affecting

Districts

All

Page 59

29

To build on the Hubbub anti-litter campaign to discourage
littering

30

To develop a “Bin Charter” to cover presentational issues in the
TBC
Tewkesbury Conservation Area

Safety, Health and Environmental impact of operations
Monitor Health and Safety and Support the Health & Safety
31
Executive's anticipated intervention programme.
32 Review of monitoring health and safety of Ubico contracts

FODDC

Objective and /or Outcomes

To promote and sustain uptake in garden waste services

Progress Update
Promotions have been completed in CBC and CDC with an
increase seen in numbers of subscribers in both districts. TBC
has been marketing the service along with the information
regarding pro rata payments and the new licence system. A
steady increase in TBC area. FODDC has seen an increase in
subscriptions again rising from 17,900 last year to 18,727.

TBC has implemented a project to tackle fly-tipping, which is
being managed by the Environmental Health Team. Activities
include stop and search with the police and the environment
agency, and a drive on investigating incidents of fly-tipping that
To improve the natural environment and reduce costs
has resulted in prosecutions. The opportunity for cross border
working with the FODDC was identified and this request has
been passed on to the shared Environmental Regulatory
Service team (a shared service across the Forest of Dean,
Cotswold and West Oxfordshire) as they have the enforcement
powers required to carry out such work.
The Love Your Forest Campaign PR launch was successful on
15 May. Good press coverage across local and national media
both online, press and TV. The Trashconverter van visited
schools, (Supported by the street wardens) and events and
tourist sites (Supported by volunteers) throughout May. A
launch event at Wenchford on 20 May was well attended - 15
bags of litter collected from the area by members of the public
To develop and deliver an action plan to work with the
community to change behaviour and reduce littering across the in exchange for seeds and flowers. The Car Sticker
competition in conjunction with the Forest Review and the
district
Tourism association ran from May to September with weekly
coverage in the local press and social media. The
communitrees trail was installed at Wenchford from 10 August
to 10 Sept and the roadside gallery was in situ late Sept and
October. An evaluation meeting took place in November and
subsequently a planning meeting has taken place for the
2018/19 campaign.
Consultation exercise with policy development, agreement,
publication and implementation leading to improved amenity in This has been included within council's new waste collection
conservation area
policy which was approved by the council in November.

Districts

To ensure safe working practices are in place and risks are
eliminated or mitigated

ALL

To establish common processes and ensure safety working
practices are in place and risks are eliminated or mitigated

Ongoing monitoring in place and waiting for confirmation of
anticipated HSE intervention programme.
Ongoing function embedded in the contract monitoring duties of
the JWT for all partners.

Project
Additional Actions

Affecting

Objective and /or Outcomes

A

Interim Waste Disposal arrangements

GCC

To establish continuity of service.

B

Redirect a proportion of waste to Wingmoor Farm landfill in
order to prolong life of Hempsted landfill.

GCC

To minimise the amount of waste disposal at Hempsted.

C

Refuse and Garden waste vehicle procurement

FODDC

New vehicles in line with contract for 2018-2024

Progress Update

Extension agreed with Enovert up to January 2020, by which
time it is expected that Javelin Park EfW will be operational.
Waste diversion has commenced to prolong the life of
Hempsted Landfill site up until Javelin Park mobilisation in
Spring 2019. Working with Ubico to deliver some SDC waste
from Hempsted to Cirencester TS.
Procurement in progress and on track for July 18 deadline

Page 60

Appendix 2
Service update – Gloucester City

General Overview
As we approach the first anniversary of the new recycling service we have had a very busy Christmas
and New Year period, with large increases in the volume of material Gloucester residents are
recycling, coupled with the adverse weather preventing normal collections taking place. Early
indications are that by the end of March we will have recycled an additional 2000 tonnes, in
comparison to the previous 12 month period.

The second phase of the animal proof bag service for “hard to reach” properties is now underway.
This bespoke service will allow 2000 properties without storage facilities for a bin to have their
waste collected every week, improving the access issues and allowing the street cleaners to clean
thoroughly without having to work around waste containers. The service has been well received by
the 700 properties that were rolled out in November.

We are delighted to announce that, following an introduction by the Joint Waste Team, we have
been successful in securing £50,000 grant funding from WRAP for a food waste intervention project.
The project will roll out in May 2018 and will deliver a year’s supply of food caddy liners to every
household, with a leaflet explaining what happens to the food waste. Any residual bins that no
longer have the “No Food Waste” sticker on the lid will be re-stickered.

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

